Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Commissioners” Journal

2025, EIGHTY-FOURTH MEETING

CRAWFORD COUNTY COURTHOUSE, COMMISSIONERS’ BOARD ROOM
Girard, KS. Tuesday, December 02, 2025 at 10:00 AM

The Crawford County Board of Commissioners met pursuant to Kansas Statutes.
Annotated Chapter 19, Article 2, Section 18 in due and regular session with open doors.
Commissioner Tom Moody served as the presiding officer.

Commissioners Bruce Blair and Carl Wood were in attendance.

County Clerk Lisa Lusker and County Counselor Jim Emerson were seated with the
Board.

Chairman Moody led the Pledge of Allegiance.

UNDER THE HEADING BUSINESS FROM A PREVIOUS MEETING
CONSENT AGENDA

On motion (25-489) of Commissioner Wood and the second of Commissioner Blair that

the consent agenda be approved including:
1. Approval of the November 25, 2025 minutes of the Board of County

Commissioners.

Yeas: Commissioners Wood, Blair, and Moody

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed and the consent agenda was approved.

SIGNING OF MOTIONS
The County Clerk presented the following motions for Commissioners’ signatures:
Motion 25 486 That the consent agenda be approved including: Approval of the
November 21, 2025 minutes
Motion 25 487 | To approve the ARPA drawdown request for November 2025
Motion 25 488 | To approve the transfer of $150,000 from Risk Management Reserve
Fund to Ambulance Fund

UNDER THE HEADING NEW BUSINESS
PROCLAMATION AND ORDERS OF THE BOARD
PUBLIC HEARINGS AND OPENING OF ANNOUNCED BIDS
MESSAGES FROM CRAWFORD CO LOCAL BOARD OF HEALTH
MESSAGES FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

Page 1 of 5




Board of Crawford County Commissioners

MESSAGES FROM ELECTED OFFICIALS
MESSAGES FROM THE PUBLIC

Item One: Ms. Sonia Lolla and Mr. Matt Lambert with US Small Business
Administration Disaster Recovery addressed the Commissioners. Mr. Lambert explained
what their agency does. He stated they are attending this meeting to see if they can make
themselves available to constituents of the county that may have suffered economic
injury due to the storms last spring. Commissioner Wood asked if a storm comes through
do they have to be declared as a disaster and Mr. Lambert confirmed they do have to be
declared by a Presidential declaration or a State declaration. Mr. Lambert provided an
example. Commissioner Wood asked if homes are included in the coverage and Ms.
Lolla explained. Mr. Lambert stated they have provided the Commissioners with their
contact information for their agency. Commissioner Wood asked if the county has to
apply for relief or can the individual apply and Mr. Lambert answered the individuals can
apply. Commissioner Moody asked if they are really just making them aware today of the
services they provide and Mr. Lambert confirmed. Commissioner Moody stated they
have press present at the meeting so he recommends they discuss their services with him
as well. Mr. Lambert stated he can get the Commissioners information on how many
businesses they have helped and other statistics. Mr. Lambert presented the
Commissioners with his contact card.

MESSAGES FROM APPOINTED OFFICIALS

Item One: Communications Director Tim Mikrut addressed the Commissioners. He
stated he is at today’s meeting to request permission to go out for bid on the radio console
project for the City of Pittsburg’s dispatch center. He mentioned the cost of the project is
$132,179.42 as previously discussed. Commissioner Wood asked who will be involved in
this project and asked how much money the county has for this. Mr. Mikrut explained
they will go out for bid on a loan on the project to keep the county’s reserve in place.
Commissioner Wood asked what happens if the money dries up and who is on the hook
for the project and Mr. Emerson explained the 911 department has between $180,000 to
$200,000 in the bank last time he had checked. Commissioner Wood asked why they
cannot use the money for half of the project and go out for bid on the other half.
Commissioner Wood asked Mr. Mikrut’s opinion and Mr. Mikrut answered he thinks it is
good to keep the money as reserve in case there is a large scale disaster. Commissioner
Moody asked if we finance the entire amount if there will be a problem with this.
Commissioner Wood asked how long they are looking at for loan repayment and Mr.
Emerson stated he was thinking three years.

On motion (25-490) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Wood to
authorize going out for bid for the financing of the Radio Console Project.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

NEW BUSINESS

Page 2 of 5



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Item One: County Clerk Lisa Lusker presented the Commissioners with a letter from
City of Pittsburg for a proposed tax abatement for Interplast Group-Pitt Plastics. She
stated they have a hearing Tuesday, December 9th, 2025 at 5:30 PM in the City
Commission Room located in the Law Enforcement Center in Pittsburg. She stated she
just wanted the Commissioners to be aware of this. Commissioner Wood asked if Ms.
Lusker or Mr. Emerson know how many years or how much money they are talking
about and Mr. Emerson stated this is all the information he has and Ms. Lusker agreed.
Commissioner Wood asked Mr. Emerson to look into this. Commissioner Moody stated
they will revisit this on Friday.

Item Two: County Counselor Jim Emerson presented the Commissioners with the annual
GAAP Resolution for them to review. He presented Resolution #2025-033, a Resolution
exempting Crawford County, Kansas from using Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) in the preparation of its financial statements and reports. Mr. Emerson
explained the resolution. Commissioner Moody asked that this is nothing new and they
do it every year and Mr. Emerson confirmed.

On motion (25-491) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Wood to
adopt Resolution #2025-033, a Resolution exempting Crawford County, Kansas from
using Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in the preparation of its
financial statements and reports.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

Item Three: Mr. Emerson stated they will need to go through and highlight budgets that
need adjusted and get a date set for the hearing. He stated he will attempt to have
something more concrete on this for Friday’s meeting.

Item Four: Commissioner Blair mentioned that the Highway 47 railroad crossing will be
closed later this week. He stated he is going to discuss with Sheriff Billy Tomasi to make
sure trucks are not rerouting down the paved roads and to make sure that it is properly
posted. Mr. Emerson stated 126 hwy will be closed as well for railroad crossing repairs.

OLD BUSINESS

Item One: Ms. Lusker brought up that KAC is taking place on December 9th and the
meeting for that day will need to be formally cancelled. Mr. Emerson confirmed.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Item One: Commissioner Wood requested an executive session for 15 minutes to discuss
Non-Elected Personnel.

Page 3 of 5



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

On motion (25-492) of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Blair to
recess this open meeting and go into a closed executive session for 15 minutes to discuss
CVB job performance pursuant to the non-elected personnel exception, K.S.A. 75-
4319(b)(1), to protect the privacy of the individual employees. The County
Commissioners and County Counselor Jim Emerson attended the executive session. The
open meeting will resume at 10:39 AM. The Motion passed 3-0.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

The Commissioners went into Executive Session at 10:24 AM and reconvened the
Open Session at 10:38 AM with no action taken except to go back into open session.

NEW BUSINESS CONTINUED

Item Five: Ms. Lusker stated she received an email from a worker’s compensation bidder
and they would like to know when a due date would be set for them to get their bid in.
Commissioner Moody asked if they want to send their bid in or come present the bid and
Ms. Lusker answered they would probably want to come present it. Mr. Emerson
suggested the due date be set December 19th. Commissioner Wood asked if they will
have all of their bid information ready and Mr. Emerson stated this will be just for
worker’s compensation.

Item Six: Mr. Emerson stated there has been some discussion about a work session with
Ryan Insurance. He stated they may want to have this ahead of the December 19th
deadline before the worker’s compensation bids come in. Mr. Emerson suggested
December 5th and Commissioner Moody asked if they can wait until December 12th. It
was agreed to set a work session with Ryan Insurance on December 12th at 9:00 AM and
Ms. Lusker stated she will reach out to them.

OLD BUSINESS CONTINUED
Item Two: Commissioner Wood stated to Mr. Emerson he needs a schedule for what is
taking place next week at KAC. Mr. Emerson stated it is online and he will provide a

copy for him.

Item Three: Commissioner Wood stated he and Mr. Emerson will be visiting the SEK
Recycling Center today at 2:30 PM to discuss the HHW program.

UNDER THE HEADING FUTURE BUSINESS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
FUTURE BUSINESS:

Item One: December 12, 2025- 9:00 AM Work Session with Ryan Insurance.

Page 4 of 5



Board of Crawford County Commissioners

Item Two: December 12, 2025- 10:00 AM Public Hearing on Vacating a portion of
county road located between Sections 14 and 23, Township 28 South, Range 25 East,
Crawford County, Kansas.

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Item One: December 4, 2025- 4:00-5:00 PM Recovery Court Graduation Ceremony at
John U. Parolo Education Center. All three Commissioners may be in attendance.

Item Two: December 9, 2025- The Regular Session of the Board of County
Commissioners is cancelled due to the Kansas Association of Counties Annual
Conference.

Item Three: December 9™-11t- Kansas Association of Counties Annual Conference.
All three Commissioners may be in attendance.

UNDER THE HEADING MOTION TO ADJOURN

MOTION TO ADJOURN

Item One: Adjournment

On the motion of Commissioner Moody and the second of Commissioner Wood to
adjourn the December 02, 2025 meeting of the Board of Crawford County
Commissioners at 10:43 AM and to reconvene at the next regularly scheduled time with
open doors.

Yeas: Commissioners Moody, Wood, and Blair

Nays:

Present but not voting:

Absent or not voting:

The motion prevailed.

In Testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed my
official seal and submitted these minutes for the approval of the Board of Crawford
County Commissioners.

Lisa Lusker
County Clerk

<>

This submission completed at the Crawford County Courthouse in Girard.
Taken RJA 12/04/25 11:10 AM

Page 5 of 5



